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STATE OF MICHIGAN

JOHN ENGLER
GOVERNOR

OFFICE OF THE STATE BUDGET
LANSING

NANCY W. DUNCAN
ACTING DIRECTOR

December 26, 2002

The Honorable John Engler, Governor
Members of the Legislature
People of the State of Michigan

As required by Article 9, Section 21, of the State
Constitution and Section 494, Public Act 431 of 1984, as
amended, we are pleased to submit the State of Michigan
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (SOMCAFR) for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2002.

INTRODUCTION TO THE REPORT

Responsibility: The Office of the State Budget, Office of
Financial Management, prepares the SOMCAFR and is
responsible for both the accuracy of the data and the
completeness and fairness of the presentation, including
disclosures. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the
information contained in the SOMCAFR is accurate in all
material respects and reported in a manner that fairly
presents the financial position and results of operations of
the State primary government and component units for which
it is financially accountable. All disclosures necessary to
enable the reader to gain a reasonable understanding of the
State's financial affairs have been included.

Adherence to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles:
As required by State statute, we have prepared the financial
statements contained in the SOMCAFR in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) applicable
to state and local governments, as promulgated by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The
State also voluntarily follows the recommendations of the
Government Finance Officers Association of the United
States and Canada (GFOA) for the contents of government
financial reports, and participates in the GFOA's review
program for the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting.

Report: The SOMCAFR is divided into three major
sections: introductory, financial, and statistical:

e The introductory section includes this letter, the
State’s organization chart, and the list of principal
officials.

e The financial section includes: the independent
auditor’s report on the Basic Financial Statements;
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
which provide an introduction, overview, and
analysis to the Basic Financial Statements; the
Basic Financial Statements, which present the
government-wide financial statements and fund
financial statements for governmental funds,
proprietary funds, fiduciary funds, and component

units, together with footnotes to the Basic Financial
Statements; Required Supplementary Information
other than MD&A, which presents budgetary
comparison schedules and information about
infrastructure assets; and the supplemental
financial data which includes the combining
financial statements and schedules.

o The statistical section includes such items as trend
information, information on debt levels, and other
selected economic and statistical data.

Internal Control Structure: The Office of the State Budget
is responsible for the overall operation of the State's central
accounting system and for establishing and maintaining the
State's internal control structure. All financial transactions of
the State primary government are recorded in the central
accounting system, except for the Michigan Unemployment
Compensation Funds, the State Employees’ Deferred
Compensation Funds, and the State Employees’ Defined
Contribution Retirement Fund. Many of the essential control
features are decentralized, such as the preparation and entry
of expenditure transactions into the central accounting
system. Consequently, the Office of the State Budget relies
upon the controls in place at the various State departments
and agencies. The Management and Budget Act (Section
18.1483 — 18.1489 of the Michigan Compiled Laws) requires
the head of each principal department to establish and
maintain an internal accounting and administrative control
system. The Act also requires the heads of each principal
department to report biennially on any material inadequacy
or weakness discovered in connection with the evaluation of
their system. The “Evaluation of Internal Controls — A
General Framework and System of Reporting”, developed in
consultation with the Office of the Auditor General, provides
the required guidance associated with the evaluation of
internal controls in Michigan State government. The
framework for internal controls has been designed to provide
reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial
statements will be free from material misstatement.

The Management and Budget Act requires each principal
department to appoint an internal auditor and to maintain
adequate internal control systems. Each department is also
required to periodically report to the Governor on the
adequacy of its internal accounting and administrative
control systems and, if any material weaknesses exist, to
provide corrective action plans and time schedules for
addressing such weaknesses. This reporting is required on
or before May 1 of each odd numbered year, effective as of
the preceding October 1.
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The discretely presented component units generally
operate outside the State's central accounting system and
are responsible for establishing and maintaining their own
separate internal control structures.

Independent Auditors: The Office of the Auditor General
(OAG) audited the SOMCAFR with a goal to provide
reasonable assurance that the SOMCAFR for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2002, is free of material misstatement.
The OAG conducted its audit in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards (GAAS), and their report
precedes the Basic Financial Statements. The audit involved
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the CAFR; assessing the accounting
principles used, and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. The OAG concluded, based upon
the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an
unqualified opinion that the SOMCAFR for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2002, is fairly presented in conformity
with GAAP.

In addition to the annual audit of the SOMCAFR, the OAG
also performs periodic financial and performance audits of
the various State departments, agencies, and institutions of
higher education. = The OAG engages outside public
accounting firms periodically, particularly for the audits of the
separately issued component unit financial statements (such
as the Michigan State Housing Development Authority), the
larger pension (and other employee benefit trust) funds, and
the Michigan Unemployment Compensation Funds. The
Auditor General also has primary responsibility for
conducting audits under the federal Single Audit Act of 1984.
Pursuant to Michigan Public Act 251 of 1986, these audits
are conducted biennially for applicable State departments,
agencies, and component unit authorities, and result in
separately issued audit reports.

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A): GASB
Statement No. 34 requires that management provide a
narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany
the Basic Financial Statements in the form of MD&A. This
letter of transmittal is intended to complement MD&A and
should be read in conjunction with it. The MD&A can be
found immediately following the Independent Auditor's
Report.

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

Reporting Entity: The State of Michigan reporting entity
reflected in the SOMCAFR, which is described more fully in
Note 1 to the basic financial statements, conforms with the
requirements of GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial
Reporting Entity. The accounting and reporting principles
contained in Statement No. 14 are based primarily on the
fundamental concept that publicly elected officials are
accountable to their constituents. Further, Statement No. 14
provides that the financial statements should emphasize the
primary government and permit financial statement users to
distinguish between the primary government and its
component units. Consequently, the transmittal letter,
MD&A, and the financial statements focus on the primary
government and its activities. Although information
pertaining to the discretely presented component units is
provided, their separately issued financial statements should
be read to obtain a complete overview of their financial
position.

Budgetary Reporting and Control: For the State primary
government operating funds (i.e., the General Fund and

annually appropriated special revenue and permanent
funds), Public Act 431 of 1984, as amended, requires the
State to adhere to GAAP in budgeting projected revenues
and expenditures and calculating fund balance for budgetary
purposes. The Act also prohibits the State from budgeting
for an ending fund balance deficit in an operating fund. If an
actual deficit is incurred, the Constitution and Act 431 require
that it be addressed in the subsequent year's budget. If
accounting principles change, Act 431 requires the State to
also implement such changes in its budgetary process.

The budgetary “basis of accounting” used by the State
primary government departs from GAAP only in ways that do
not affect unreserved fund balance, and that do not impact
most revenue and expenditure line items. Appropriations for
nearly all line items, therefore, are made on a basis
consistent with GAAP, which makes it possible for the State
to use the central accounting system for both budgetary
control and financial reporting purposes. The two variances
between GAAP and the budgetary basis of accounting are:
1) the use of encumbrances for budgetary control purposes
(which GAAP does not require), and 2) the timing of
recording expenditures and liabilities for capital lease
commitments on a “pay as you go” basis for budgetary
purposes, rather than at lease inception as required by
GAAP. Compliance with the final updated budget for the
annually budgeted operating funds of the State primary
government is demonstrated in the budget and actual
comparative schedules and notes in the SOMCAFR.

Revenue and Spending Limitation Requirements: Under
the State Constitution, total State revenues are limited to a
percentage of total Michigan personal income. If the limit is
exceeded by an amount less than 1%, the excess may be
transferred to the Budget Stabilization Fund. If revenues
exceed the limit by 1% or more, the amount in excess must
be refunded to payers of personal income and single
business taxes. The calculations necessary to determine the
State's compliance with this requirement for fiscal year 2001-
2002 are not final. For fiscal year 2000-2001, the most
recent year for which final calculations are available, total
State revenues subject to this limitation were less than the
limit by approximately $2.4 billion. The State expects that
total State revenues subject to the limitation will not exceed
the limit for fiscal year 2001-2002.

The State Constitution also requires that spending to local
units of government be maintained at not less than a
specified level of total State spending, originally determined
to be 41.61% for the base fiscal year 1978-79. The originally
determined percentage was recalculated, effective fiscal
year 1992-93, reflecting the terms of a legal settlement
agreement. The recalculated base year percentage is
48.97%. The calculations necessary to determine the
State's compliance with this requirement for fiscal year 2001-
2002 are not final. For fiscal year 2000-2001, the most
recent year for which final calculations are available, the
proportion of total State spending paid to local units of
government was determined to be 62.77%, reflecting
payments that exceeded the minimum required by $3.4
billion. The State expects that payments to local units of
government will exceed the minimum requirement for fiscal
year 2001-2002.

The State's status, with regard to these Constitutional
provisions, is discussed more fully in Note 3 to the basic
financial statements.



ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK

The U.S. economy fell into recession in fiscal year 2000-
2001, and began its recovery in fiscal year 2001-2002. The
recovery has been uneven. Businesses continued to reduce
their equipment investment through mid 2002 and cut
spending on new construction throughout the fiscal year.
Consumer spending posted solid growth, buoyed by
aggressive vehicle buying incentive programs and record
mortgage refinancing. Consumer sentiment weakened
toward the end of the fiscal year. Business confidence
rebounded through the middle of the year but has since
declined. The housing market remained strong.

Moderate economic growth and sharp increases in
worker  productivity restrained employment. u.s.
employment fell sharply early in the fiscal year and was
essentially flat since then. After falling at its fastest rate in a
decade in fiscal year 2000-2001, U.S. light vehicle
production rebounded somewhat in fiscal year 2001-2002.
The manufacturing sector contracted in the fiscal year.
Federal government actions have helped support the U.S.
economy with sharp increases in spending and with
extremely low interest rates. The stock market declined
sharply again in fiscal year 2001-2002, finishing the year
down about 20 percent.

Michigan’s economy was slowed by the U.S. recession
and sluggish recovery. Michigan wage and salary
employment fell by about 60,000 in fiscal year 2001-2002, a
1.3 percent decline. Michigan’s unemployment rate
averaged 6.2 percent. Michigan personal income fell in early
fiscal year 2001-2002 before rising over the second half. For
the fiscal year as a whole, income was flat. Weak wage and
salary income growth was reflected in fiscal year 2001-2002
income tax withholding. Slow calendar year 2001 personal
income growth, coupled with sharp declines in the stock
markets, sharply reduced fiscal year 2001-2002 quarterly
and annual income tax payments in April 2002. '

The most recent official State consensus economic
forecast was prepared in May 2002. However, historical
economic data and economic conditions have changed
substantially since May. Thus, a more recent forecast likely
provides a more accurate outlook. In November 2002, the
Research Seminar in Quantitative Economics (RSQE) at the
University of Michigan released its forecasts for the U.S. and
Michigan economies through calendar year 2004. According
to RSQE’s November 2002 forecast, Michigan personal
income growth is projected to accelerate from 3.5 percent in
calendar year 2003 to 5.3 percent in 2004. RSQE projects
inflation, as measured by the Detroit consumer price index,
to remain moderate at 2.7 percent and 2.4 percent,
respectively in 2003 and 2004. RSQE projects Michigan
wage and salary employment to fall 0.3 percent in 2003
before rising 1.8 percent in 2004.

The Department of Treasury and House and Senate
Fiscal Agencies will meet on January 14, 2003 to reach
consensus on an official State forecast of the U.S. and
Michigan economies at the January 2003 Consensus
Revenue Estimating Conference.

MAJOR INITIATIVES AND FUTURE PROJECTS

Education Remains a Top Priority: Education continues

to be one of the most significant investments of State
resources. More than $15.1 billion, or 38.3 percent, of the
State’s overall budget is devoted to education in fiscal year
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2002-2003. This includes funding for the K-12 system,
universities, community colleges and student financial aid.
In fiscal year 2002, the State spent more on K-12 education
than it spent on expenditures financed by General Fund
general purpose revenues.

Health Care Services: The delivery of health care
services consumed the second largest share of State
resources. While the State administers a variety of health
care programs, the Medicaid program is the most extensive.
In fiscal year 2001-2002, over $2 billion in General Fund
resources and over $4.0 billion in federal funds were
dedicated to this program. These funds allowed the State to
provide comprehensive health care services to over 1.2
million low-income Michigan citizens.

Transportation Infrastructure Investments: The State’s
Build Michigan |, Il, and Il financing programs have resulted
in record investments in Michigan’s transportation
infrastructure. In fiscal year 2002-2003, the Department of
Transportation will invest over $1.0 billion in the state
trunkline system. Since 1990, 14,500 miles of roads and
nearly 1,900 bridges have been improved or repaired. Fiscal
year 2002-2003 marks the sixth year in a row that the
Michigan transportation program has exceeded the billion-
dollar mark.

Technology Consolidation: Michigan’s goal of being on
the leading edge of technology, culminated with the creation

of the Department of Information Technology in fiscal year
2001-2002. All technology management functions within the
State are now housed within a single department, which
allows for better management of technology investments,
improved information management and more efficient
services to citizens.

In addition, a survey by the Center for Digital Government
and The Progress & Freedom Foundation rated Michigan as
second in the nation for its impressive record of using digital
technology to deliver high quality, convenient services to
citizens and businesses.

Financial Management Reporting Improvements: The
Office of the State Budget (OSB) led a statewide effort to

reduce the time and cost of the annual bockclosing process
that produces the SOMCAFR. OSB’s publication of this
report, with an unqualified audit opinion, marked the quickest
a state has ever released its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report. This accomplishment required a
collaborative effort from accounting and financial personnel
throughout State government.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The MD&A provides an overview of the State’s financial
activities addressing both governmental and business-type
activities reported in the government-wide financial
statements. In addition, MD&A focuses on the State’s major
funds: the General Fund, Budget Stabilization Fund, School
Aid Fund, State Lottery Fund, and the Michigan
Unemployment Compensation Funds. Fiduciary activities
are excluded from the MD&A.

Cash Management and Investments: As discussed more
fully in Notes 5 and 8 to the basic financial statements, the
State Treasurer maintains the State’s Common Cash pool,
which is used by most State funds for short-term investments
and to provide centralized control over disbursements. The
total amount of pooled cash, which is primarily invested in
prime commercial paper, amounted to $3.2 billion at




September 30, 2002, a decrease of approximately $1.6
billion (34.0 percent) from $4.8 billion at September 30,
2001. Total investments amounted to $46.7 billion at
September 30, 2002, a decrease of $7.0 billion (13.0
percent) from $53.7 billion at September 30, 2001. Pension
(and other employee benefits) trust fund investments
represent 91.4 percent of the total investments held by the
State.

Debt Management: The State Constitution authorizes
general obligation long-term borrowing, subject to approval
by the Legislature and a majority of voters at a general
election. General obligation bond issues totaled $455.1
million during 2001-2002. The bonds provided financing to
pay off the principle of previously issued bonds that carried
higher interest rates (commonly known as refunding), and
provided financing for the Clean Michigan Initiative and
school district loans.

Long-term bonds have been issued periodically for
specific purposes, such as constructing new State and
university facilities and road and bridge construction.
Funding of the debt requirements is to come strictly from
designated revenue sources. Revenue dedicated bonded
debt issuances, including that of the State Building Authority,
totaled $820.9 million during 2001-2002, resulting in a total
of $3.9 billion outstanding at year-end.

The State Constitution provides that the Legislature may
authorize the issuance of short-term general obligation notes
to assist in managing cash flows. Such borrowings are
limited by the Constitution to 15% of undedicated State
revenue received in the preceding year. The Constitution
also requires that such borrowings be repaid before
year-end. No such borrowings occurred during the fiscal
year.

Additional disclosures about the State’s general long-term
obligations are provided in Note 12 to the basic financial
statements.

Pension Plans: The State Constitution requires the State
to provide current funding of plan benefits for the State’s
defined benefit pension plans. Statutes provide for the
amortization of unfunded prior service costs. In two of the
four plans for which the State is responsible for providing
funding, the enabling statutes for the plans contain
provisions under which a shortfall in the legally required
contributions will be corrected in succeeding fiscal years.

The State Employees’ Retirement System (SERS) is the
largest of the defined benefit plans for which the State is
responsible for providing funding. Total assets of SERS at
September 30, 2002 were $8.8 billion, with net assets held in
trust for pension and postemployment health-care benefits

totaling $8.4 billion. Additional disclosures relating to the
State’s pension funds are provided in Note 10 to the financial
statements.

Risk Management: Risk management was established
within the Department of Management and Budget in 1987 to
improve the State's risk control policies and procedures.
The unit's activities include analysis of and control over
insurance coverage and risk exposure, and planning and
implementing a statewide safety and health policy and
program. The State is self-insured for many types of general
liability and property losses. Additional disclosures on the
State's risk management activities are provided in Note 24.

OTHER INFORMATION

Certificate of Achievement: The GFOA awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting to the State of Michigan for its SOMCAFR for the
year ended September 30, 2001. The Certificate of
Achievement is a prestigious national award, recognizing
conformance with the highest standards for preparation of
state and local government financial reports.

To be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a
government must publish an easily readable and efficiently
organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose
contents conform to program standards. Such reports must
satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and
applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one
year only. The State has received a Certificate of
Achievement for 15 consecutive years. We believe our
current report continues to conform to the Certificate of
Achievement program requirements, and we are submitting it
to the GFOA for review.

Acknowledgments: In any year, the preparation of this
report requires the collective efforts of literally hundreds of
finance personnel throughout the State, both individually and
in teams from virtually all agencies and departments. We
sincerely appreciate the dedicated efforts of all of these
individuals. This year we are particularly proud of the efforts
necessary to publish the CAFR within 90 days. Achieving
this was the result of the dedicated management and staff of
the Financial Control Division, Office of Financial
Management; the chief financial officers, chief accountants,
and their staffs of all State agencies; and the management
and staff of the Office of the Auditor General, all of whom
continue to strive for improvements that will result in
Michigan being a national leader in quality and efficiency for
financial reporting.

Sincerely, W

N :::ann

Acti g State Budget Director

Michael J. Moody, C A é

Director, Office of Financial Management
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Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

State of
Michigan

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
September 30, 2001

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.
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Michigan corrections officers are among the best trained in the nation. The Department of Corrections

requires completion of 620 hours of classroom and on-the-job training. Certain specially-trained officers
and other staff can be chosen to represent the department at ceremonial functions.



TOP:

The Michigan Department of Corrections provides Adult Basic Education and GED completions
throughout the system, as well as special education courses. The number of prisoners earning GEDs
has steadily increased. The State does not pay for college classes for prisoners, but they are able to
take correspondence courses at their own expense.

BOTTOM:

The department stresses completion of a GED before parole and encourages enrollment in vocational
programs which include: building trades, business education, visual graphic technology, horticulture,
welding, introduction to computers, auto mechanics, and machine tool operations.
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STATE OF MICHIGAN

OFFICE oF THE AuUDITOR GENERAL
201 N. WASHINGTON SQUARE
LANSING, MicHIGAN 48913

(517) 334-8050 THomas H. McTavisH, C.PA.
Fax (517) 334-8079 AubiTor GENERAL

Independent Auditor’s Report

The Honorable John M. Engler, Governor December 26,2002
Members of the Legislature

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the State of Michigan, principally as of
September 30,2002 and for the year then ended, listed in the foregoing table of contents. These basic financial
statements are the responsibility of the State’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
basic financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the State Lottery
Fund, Michigan Unemployment Compensation Funds, Michigan Employment Security Act - Administration
Fund, State Building Authority - Debt Service Fund, State Building Authority - Capital Projects Fund, State
Sponsored Group Insurance Fund, State Employees’ Deferred Compensation Funds, State Police Retirement
Fund, State Employees’ Retirement Fund, Public School Employees’ Retirement Fund, Judges’ Retirement Fund,
State Employees’ Defined Contribution Retirement Fund, Michigan Education Savings Program, Michigan
State Housing Development Authority, Michigan Municipal Bond Authority, Michigan Higher Education
Facilities Authority, Mackinac Bridge Authority, Michigan State Hospital Finance Authority, Michigan Higher
Education Student Loan Authority, Michigan Higher Education Assistance Authority, Mackinac Island State Park
Commission, State Bar of Michigan, Central Michigan University, Western Michigan University, Eastern Michigan
University, Ferris State University, Grand Valley State University, Lake Superior State University, Michigan
Technological University, Northern Michigan University, Oakland University, and Saginaw Valley State University.
Those financial statements reflect total assets and revenues of the government-wide financial statements and
total assets and revenues or additions of the fund financial statements as follows:

Government-Wide Financial Statements: Percent of Assets Percent of Revenues
Primary Government - Governmental Activities 2.2% 2.2%
Primary Government - Business-Type Activities 98.4% 82.4%
Component Units 97.4% 91.0%

Percent of Revenues

Fund Financial Statements: Percent of Assets or Additions
Governmental Funds - Non-Major Funds 9.8% 3.1%
Proprietary Funds - Business-Type Activities — Enterprise

Funds - State Lottery Fund 100.0% 100.0%
Proprietary Funds - Business-Type Activities — Enterprise

Funds - Michigan Unemployment Compensation Funds 100.0% 100.0%
Proprietary Funds - Governmental Activities — Internal

Service Funds 58.6% 52.0%
Fiduciary Funds - Pension (and Other Employee Benefit)

Trust Funds 99.7% 99.7%
Fiduciary Funds - Private Purpose Funds 74.3% 64.7%
Component Units 97.4% 91.0%

Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to us,
and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for those component units and funds, is based
solely upon the reports of the other auditors.




STaTE OF MICHIGAN
OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL

THomas H. McTavisH, C.PA.
AUDITOR GENERAL

The Honorable John M. Engler, Governor
Members of the Legislature
Page 2

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the basic financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the basic financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall basic financial statement presentation. We believe our audit and the reports of other auditors
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our report and the reports of other auditors, the basic financial statements referred
to in the first paragraph present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the State of
Michigan, principally as of September 30, 2002, and the results of its operations and the cash flows of its
proprietary fund types for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. The combining and individual fund statements and schedules - non-major funds listed in the foregoing
table of contents, which are also the responsibility of the State’s management, are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements of the State of Michigan.
This information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial
statements and in the audits performed by other auditors and, in our opinion, based on our audit and the
reports of other auditors, is fairly presented, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

The management’s discussion and analysis on pages 5 through 12, budgetary comparison schedules and
corresponding notes on pages 82 through 85, and information about infrastructure assets reported using
the modified approach on pages 86 and 87 are not required parts of the basic financial statements but are
supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied
certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information
and express no opinion on it.

The introductory and statistical sections listed in the foregoing table of contents were not audited by us and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on them.
Sincerely,

Lo

Thomas H. McTavish, C.P.A.
Auditor General
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following is a discussion and analysis of the State of Michigan’s (the State’s) financial performance, providing an
overview of the activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002. Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter at
the front of this report and with the State's financial statements, which follow this section.

HIGHLIGHTS
Government-wide:
e  Although the State's net assets decreased by $2.6 billion from the previous year-end, its assets still exceeded its
liabilities by $19.9 billion as of the close of the fiscal year. Component units reported net assets of $4.4 billion, an
increase of $133.5 million (or 3.1 percent) from the previous year.

Fund Level:

e As of the close of the fiscal year, the State’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $4.5
billion, with $1.4 billion reported as unreserved fund balance and the remaining amount of $3.1 billion reserved for
specific purposes, such as education and transportation. At the end of the fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the
General Fund was $114.5 million.

e The proprietary funds reported net assets at year-end of $2.7 billion, a decrease of $540.7 million (or 16.7 percent)
during the year.

Long-term Debt:
e The State’s total debt rose during the fiscal year to $5.9 billion, an increase of $744.6 million, which represents the net
difference between new issuances, and payments and refundings of outstanding debt. During the year the State
issued bonds ($1.3 billion), notes ($200.0 million), and commercial paper ($2.3 billion).

More detailed information regarding the government-wide, fund level, and long-term debt activities can be found beginning
on page 7.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is an introduction to the State’s basic financial statements, which comprise three
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.
This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements.

Government-wide Statements (Reporting the State as a Whole)

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities are two financial statements that report information about the
State, as a whole, and about its activities that should help answer this question: How has the State‘s financial position, as a
whole, changed as a result of this year’s activities? These statements include all non-fiduciary assets and liabilities using the
accrual basis of accounting. The current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is
received or paid.

The Statement of Net Assets (pages 14 and 15) presents all of the State’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as “net assets”. Over time, increases and decreases in net assets measure whether the State’s
financial position is improving or not.

The Statement of Activities (pages 16 and 17) presents information showing how the State’s net assets changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying events giving rise to the change
occur, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Therefore, revenues and expenses are reported in these statements for
some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g. uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation
leave).

Both statements report three activities:
e Governmental Activities — Most of the State’s basic services are reported under this category. Taxes and

intergovernmental revenues generally fund these services. The Legislature, the Judiciary, and the general operations
of the Executive departments fall within the governmental activities.

2001-2002 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
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report.

Business-type Activities — The State charges fees to customers to help it cover all or most of the cost of certain
services it provides. Lottery tickets, liquor purchases, and the State’s unemployment compensation services are
examples of business-type activities.

Discretely Presented Component Units — Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected
officials of the primary government are financially accountable. The State has 14 authorities and 10 universities that
are reported as discretely presented component units of the State.

This report includes two schedules (pages 21 and 23) that reconcile the amounts reported on the governmental fund
financial statements (modified accrual accounting) with governmental activities (accrual accounting) on the appropriate
government-wide statements. The following summarizes the impact of transitioning from modified accrual to accrual accounting:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not reported on governmental fund statements.

Certain tax revenues that are earned, but not available, are reported as governmental activities, but are reported as
deferred revenue on the governmental fund statements.

Other long-term assets that are not available to pay for current period expenditures are deferred in governmental fund
statements, but not deferred on the government-wide statements.

Internal service funds are reported as governmental activities, but reported as proprietary funds in the fund financial
statements.

Certain pension trust funds have been funded in excess of their annual required contribution. These assets are
recorded only in the government-wide statements.

Deferred issue costs are capitalized and amortized as governmental activities, but reported as expenditures in the
governmental fund statements.

Unless due and payable, long-term liabilities, such as capital lease obligations, compensated absences, litigation,
bonds and notes payable, and others only appear as liabilities in the government-wide statements.

Capital outlay spending results in capital assets on the government-wide statements, but are reported as expenditures
on the governmental fund statements.

Bond and note proceeds result in liabilities on the government-wide statements, but are recorded as other financing
sources on the governmental fund statements.

Certain other outflows represent either increases or decreases in liabilities on the government-wide statements, but are
reported as expenditures on the governmental fund statements.

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the
data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes can be found beginning on page 41 of this

Fund Financial Statements (Reporting the State's Major Funds)

The fund financial statements begin on page 20 and provide detailed information about the major individual funds. A fund
is a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts that the State uses to keep track of specific sources of
funding and spending for a particular purpose. In addition to the major funds, page 92 begins the individual fund data for the
non-major funds. The State's funds are divided into three categories — governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary — and use
different accounting approaches.

Governmental funds -- Most of the State's basic services are reported in the governmental funds, which focus on how

money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for future spending. The
governmental fund financial statements provide a detailed short-term view of the State's general government operations and
the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial
resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the State's programs. These funds are reported using modified
accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. Governmental
funds include the General Fund and special revenue, capital project, debt service, and permanent funds.

Proprietary funds -- When the State charges customers for the services it provides, whether to outside customers or to

other agencies within the State, these services are generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds (enterprise and
internal service) utilize accrual accounting, the same method used by private sector businesses. Enterprise funds report

2001-2002 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
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activities that provide supplies and services to the general public. An example is the State Lottery Fund. Internal service
funds report activities that provide supplies and services for the State's other programs and activities - such as the State's
Vehicle and Travel Services. Internal service funds are reported as governmental activities on the government-wide
statements.

e  Fiduciary funds -- The State acts as a trustee or fiduciary for its employee pension plans. It is also responsible for other
assets that, because of a trust arrangement, can be used only for the trust beneficiaries. The State's fiduciary activities are
reported in separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Assets and Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets beginning on page 32. These
funds, which include pension (and other employee benefit), private-purpose, and agency funds, are reported using accrual
accounting. The government-wide statements exclude-fiduciary fund activities and balances because these assets are
restricted in purpose and do not represent discretionary assets of the State to finance its operations.

Additional Required Supplementary Information

Following the basic financial statements is additional Required Supplementary Information that further explains and
supports the information in the financial statements. The Required Supplementary Information includes budgetary comparison
schedules reconciling the statutory and generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) fund balances at fiscal year-end, and
condition and maintenance data regarding certain portions of the State’s infrastructure.

Other Supplementary Information

Other supplementary information includes combining financial statements for non-major governmental, proprietary, and
fiduciary funds, and non-major discretely presented component units. These funds are added together, by fund type, and
presented in single columns in the basic financial statements, but are not reported individually, as with major funds, on the
governmental fund financial statements.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT AS A WHOLE
The State’s combined net assets decreased $2.6 billion (or 11.4 percent) over the course of this fiscal year's operations.
The net assets of the governmental activities decreased $2.0 billion (or 10.4 percent) and business-type activities had a

decrease of $559.3 million (or 17.9 percent).

Changes in Net Assets
For Fiscal Year Ending September 30

(In Millions)
Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
Current and other non-
current assets $10,458.9 $12,420.6 $ 3,598.6 $ 4,219.9 $14,057.5 $16,640.4
Capital assets 18,349.9 17,750.5 4 .3 18,350.3 17,750.8
Total assets 28,808.8 30,171.1 3,699.0 4,220.1 32,407.9 34,391.2
Current liabilities 4,343.5 4,180.8 430.3 431.8 4,773.9 4,612.5
Long-term liabilities 7,095.3 6,606.5 599.9 660.3 7,695.2 7,266.8
Total liabilities 11,438.9 10,787.3 1,030.2 1,092.0 12,469.1 11,879.3
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 15,014.8 15,129.8 4 3 15,015.3 15,130.1
Restricted 2,016.6 2,849.2 2,563.9 3,121.4 4,580.5 5,970.6
Unrestricted 338.6 1,404.8 4.4 6.4 343.0 1,411.2
Total net assets $17,370.0 $19,383.8 $2,568.8 $ 3,128.1 $19,938.7 $22,511.9

The largest component (75.3 percent) of the State’s net assets reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings,
equipment, infrastructure, and others), less any related debt outstanding that was needed to acquire or construct the assets.
Restricted net assets are the next largest component, comprising 23.0 percent. These represent resources that are subject to
external restrictions, constitutional provisions, or enabling legislation on how they can be used. The remaining portion,
unrestricted net assets, may be used at the State’s discretion, but often have limitations on use based on State statutes.
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The following condensed financial information was derived from the government-wide Statement of Activities and reflects
how the State’s net assets changed during the fiscal year:

Changes in Net Assets
For Fiscal Year Ending September 30

(In Millions)
Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
Revenues Cov
Program revenues
Charges for services $ 1,608.9 $ 1,496.9 $ 3,764.1 $ 3,297.9 $ 5,373.0 $ 4,794.8
Operating grants 10,848.7 10,255.3 535.5 313.6 11,384.2 10,569.0
Capital grants 589.5 667.4 - - 589.5 667.4
General revenues
General taxes 10,099.5 11,425.7 10.7 10.4 10,110.2 11,436.2
Taxes restricted for
educational purposes 9,481.0 9,500.3 - - 9,481.0 9,500.3
Taxes restricted for
transportation purposes 2,002.6 1,936.3 - - 2,002.6 1,936.3
Investment and interest
earnings 51.7 159.2 1.6 4.2 53.2 163.4
Miscellaneous 790.9 669.0 - - 790.9 669.0
Total revenues 35,472.8 36,110.1 4,311.9 3,626.2 39,784.7 39,736.3
Expenses
General government 1,560.1 1,735.2 - - 1,560.1 1,735.2
Education 14,696.1 14,109.6 - - 14,696.1 14,109.6
Family independence
services 3,792.1 3,627.8 - - 3,792.1 3,627.8
Public safety and
corrections 2,161.5 2,098.6 - - 2,161.5 2,098.6
Conservation, environment,
recreation, and
agriculture 691.8 682.9 - - 691.8 682.9
Labor, commerce, and
regulatory 898.2 884.1 - - 898.2 884.1
Health services 8,952.4 8,5636.0 - - 8,952.4 8,536.0
Transportation 3,268.2 2,766.7 - - 3,268.4 2,766.7
Tax expenditures 615.1 532.8 - - 615.1 532.8
Intergovernmental - revenue
sharing 1,517.3 1,5655.8 - - 1,517.3 1,655.8
Interest on long-term debt 248.3 221.3 - - 248.3 221.3
Liquor Purchase Revolving
Fund - - 494.7 479.4 494.7 479.4
State Lottery Fund - - 1,153.3 1,132.8 1,153.3 1,132.8
Michigan Unemployment
Compensation Funds - - 2,328.7 1,485.9 2,328.7 1,485.9
Total expenses 38,401.1 36,750.8 3,976.7 3,098.1 42,377.8 39,848.9
Excess (deficiency) Before
Contributions and
Transfers (2,928.3) (640.7) 335.2 528.1 (2,593.1) (112.6)
Contributions to permanent
fund principal 19.9 38.4 - - 19.9 38.4
Transfers 894.5 737.6 (894.5) (737.6) - -
Increase (decease) in
net assets (2,013.8) 135.4 (559.3) (209.5) (2,573.1) (74.2)
Net assets — beginning 19,383.8 19,248.4 3,128.1 3,337.6 22,511.9 22,586.0
Net assets — ending $17,370.0 $19,383.8 $ 2,568.8 $ 3,128.1 $19,938.7 $22,511.8
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Governmental Activities:

The following chart depicts revenues of the governmental activities for the fiscal year:

Revenues - Governmental Activities
Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2002

Investment and
Interest Earnings Capital
Contributions to 0.1% Grants
Permanent Funds
0.1%

Operating
Grants
30.6%

Miscellaneous
2.2%

Charges for
Services
4.5%

Taxes Restricted
for Transportation
5.6%

Taxes Restricted
for Education
26.7%

Revenues for the State’s governmental activities are likely to decrease in the coming years as the personal income and
single business tax rates gradually decline. By law, the personal income tax rate (currently 4.1%) is reduced by 0.1% each
January 1 until the rate reaches 3.9%. Similarly, the single business tax rate (currently 1.9%) is reduced by 0.1% each January
1 if the Budget Stabilization Fund balance on the previous September 30 was greater than $250 million. Decreases in tax
revenues during the current fiscal year resulted from these tax rollbacks, in addition to the slowdown in the economy. Because
the September 30, 2002 Budget Stabilization Fund balance is less than $250 million, the single business tax rate will not be

reduced on January 1, 2003.

The following chart depicts expenses of the governmental activities for the fiscal year:

Expenses - Governmental Activities
Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2002

Tax
Interest on Expenditures Conservation, Epvironment,
Long-term Debt: 1.6% Recreation &

Agriculture

Education 1.8%

38.3%

Revenue
Sharing
4.0%

Transportation
8.5%

Health Services Family Independence Services
23.3% 9.9%

Commerce
& Regulatory

Government

Public Safety & Corrections
5.6%
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Business-type Activities

Net assets of the business-type activities decreased by $559.3 million (or 17.9 percent) during the fiscal year. Factors
contributing to these results included:

e The increase in unemployment in the State resulted in the Michigan Unemployment Compensation Funds finishing the
fiscal year with a decrease in net assets of $589.9 million (or 19.5 percent) to $2.4 billion.

o The State Lottery Fund’s net assets increased by $32.4 million (or 33.8 percent), which resulted from an increase in the
market value of investments that Lottery holds to fund future payments due on annuitized lottery prizes. .

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE STATE’S FUNDS

As the State completed the year, its governmental funds reported fund balances of $4.5 billion. Of this total amount, $1.4
billion constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is available for appropriation for the general purposes of the funds. The
General Fund ($114.5 million), the School Aid Fund ($237.0 million), the Budget Stabilization Fund ($145.2 million), and
transportation-related funds ($501.6 million) comprise a significant portion of the unreserved fund balance. The remainder of
fund balance is reserved and is not available for new spending because it has already been dedicated for various commitments,
such as capital outlay projects.

General Fund

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the State. At the end of current fiscal year 2001-2002, unreserved fund
balance of the General Fund was $114.5 million and reserved fund balance was $1.7 billion. Total fund balance diminished
during the fiscal year by $131.4 million (or 6.9 percent), primarily because of lower tax collections during the economic
recession.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights:

The State’s changes in the projected inflows were consistent with the national economic condition. In November 2001, the
Governor issued Executive Order 2001-9, authorizing expenditure reductions totaling $319.2 million and transfers of
unexpended balances and excess revenues from restricted revenue sources totaling $144.6 million to be used as general fund —
general purpose revenues. In May 2002, the official State consensus economic forecast documented the continuing decline in
State revenues. As a result, the original budget was amended by various supplemental appropriations and appropriation
reductions. The following summarizes the differences between the original and final budget amounts:

¢ General purpose tax revenues of $8.1 billion were less than the original estimate of $9.0 billion.

¢ Restricted revenue inflows of $13.4 billion were greater than the estimated $12.8 billion.

e The Budget Stabilization Fund transferred $452.8 million to the General Fund, $297.8 million more than was originally
budgeted.

Differences between the final budget and actual spending result from spending authority lapses of $85.0 million, over-
expended appropriations of $1.6 million, and restricted revenue authorized but not spent of $6.4 million.

Overall, there were no net overexpenditures by General Fund departments. There were, however, the following line-item
overexpenditures of State funds incurred during the year:

Community Health $ .1 million
Family Independence Agency $1.5 million

General Fund revenues will experience reduced revenues in the next fiscal year. Corresponding reductions in spending
and other measures will help ensure that the fund balance remains positive.

School Aid Fund

Fund balance at September 30, 2002, totaled $241.9 million, a decrease of $462.2 million (or 65.6 percent) from the prior
year. Revenues and transfers to the fund totaled $10.9 billion. Expenditures to school districts and other costs increased by
$415.1 million (or 3.8 percent) from the previous year and totaled $11.4 billion.

Counter-cyclical Budget and Economic Stabilization Fund

Fund balance at September 30, 2002 decreased to $145.2 million, from $994.2 million the previous year. The downturn in
the economy required an increase in transfers from the fund to assist the State in balancing its budget. During fiscal year 2002-
2003, the State anticipates that transfers from the fund will further reduce the fund balance.
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets: At the end of the fiscal year 2001-2002, the State had invested $18.4 billion, net of accumulated
depreciation, in a broad range of capital assets (see the table below). Depreciation charges for this fiscal year totaled $178.1
million.

Capital Assets as of September 30
(Net of Depreciation, In Millions)

Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
Land $ 3,082.4 $ 3,093.3 $ $ - $ 3,082.4 $ 3,093.3
Land improvement 68.3 56.2 - 68.3 56.2
Buildings and
improvements 1,997.3 1,7145 - 1,997.3 1,714.5
Equipment 202.3 193.1 4 3 202.7 193.4
Infrastructure 11,766.1 11,810.4 - 11,766.1 11,8104
Other 18.9 20.7 - 18.9 20.7
Subtotal 17,135.3 16,888.2 4 .3 17,135.7 16,888.5
Construction in
progress 1,214.6 862.3 - 1,214.6 862.3
Total $18,349.9 $17,750.5 $ 4 $ .3 $18,350.3 $17,750.8

The most significant impact on capital assets during the year resulted from the completion
of the Hall of Justice and continued road and bridge projects.

As allowed by GASB Statement No. 34, the State has adopted an alternative process for recording depreciation expense
on selected infrastructure assets. Under this alternative method, referred to as the modified approach, the State expenses
certain maintenance and preservation costs and does not report depreciation expense. Assets accounted for under the
modified approach include approximately 27,400 lane miles of roads, 4,600 bridges (spans greater than 20 feet), and 1,100
other spans that the State is responsible to maintain.

The State has consistently improved the assessed condition of roads over the past five years. The State’s goal is to have
no more than 30% of roads in “poor” or “very poor” condition. The most recent condition assessment, completed for calendar
year 2001, indicated that 22% of roads were considered poor or very poor.

The State’s bridges have assessed conditions that are better than the established benchmarks. The most recent
assessment (2001) indicated that the condition of the bridges had improved from the condition reported for 2000.

The State’s fiscal year 2002-2003 capital outlay budget projects spending $576.7 million for new projects at Michigan
colleges and universities, and special maintenance projects at various state agency buildings, in addition to $299.7 million of
unspent capital outlay authorizations that existed at September 30, 2002. More detailed information about the State’s capital
assets is presented in Note 9 to the financial statements.

Long-term Debt: The State, along with the State Building Authority (SBA), a blended component unit of the State, are
empowered by law to authorize, issue, and sell debt obligations. General obligation bonds, issued by the State, are backed by
the full faith and credit of the State. The State also issues revenue dedicated bonded debt, whose payment for principal and
interest comes solely out of funds that receive legally restricted revenues. The State is not legally obligated for the debt issued
by SBA. SBA’s bonds generate revenue to finance the construction of facilities used by the State and universities. Revenues
derived from leases on the facilities fund the debt service requirements. More detailed information regarding the State’s long-
term obligations is presented in Notes 12 and 14 to the financial statements.
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Outstanding Bonded Debt as of September 30

(In Millions)
Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
General obligation bonds
(backed by the State) $1,119.6 $1,031.8 $ - $ - $1,119.6 $1,031.8
Revenue bonds and notes
(backed by specific tax
and fee revenues) 3,907.7 3,433.3 - - 3,907.7 3,433.3
Total $5,027.2 $4,465.1 $ - $ - $5,027.2 $4,465.1

During fiscal year 2001-2002 the State issued general obligation | gond Ratings
debt totaling $455.1 million, including $300.7 million to pay off amounts | 1 state’s general obligations are rated
outstanding on previously issued bonds that carried higher interest Aaa by Moody’s and AAA by Standard &
costs, $56.8 million of bonds to fund conservation and recreation Poors.
projects, and $97.7 million of bonds to provide funds to loan to school
districts.

Limitations on Debt ,

The State Constitution authorizes general obligation long-term borrowing, with approval of the Legislature and a majority of
the voters, and general obligation short-term notes, of which the principal may not exceed 15% of undedicated revenues
received in the preceding year. No short-term borrowing occurred in fiscal year 2001-2002.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

Michigan’s economy was slowed by the U.S. recession and sluggish recovery. Michigan wage and salary employment fell
by about 60,000 in fiscal year 2001-2002, a 1.3 percent decline. Michigan’s unemployment rate averaged 6.2 percent.
Michigan personal income fell in early fiscal year 2001-2002 before rising over the second half. For the fiscal year as a whole,
income was flat. Weak wage and salary income growth was reflected in fiscal year 2001-2002 income tax withholding. Slow
calendar year 2001 personal income growth, coupled with sharp declines in the stock markets, sharply reduced fiscal year 2001-
2002 quarterly and annual income tax payments in April 2002.

In November 2002, the Research Seminar in Quantitative Economics (RSQE) at the University of Michigan released its
forecasts for the U.S. and Michigan economies through calendar year 2004. According to RSQE’s November 2002 forecast,
Michigan personal income growth is projected to accelerate from 3.5 percent in calendar year 2003 to 5.3 percent in 2004.
RSQE projects inflation, as measured by the Detroit consumer price index, to remain moderate at 2.7 percent and 2.4 percent,
respectively in 2003 and 2004. RSQE projects Michigan wage and salary employment to fall 0.3 percent in 2003 before rising
1.8 percent in 2004.

CONTACTING THE STATE’S OFFICE OF FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors with a general
overview of the State’s finances and to demonstrate the State’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have any
questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Office of the State Budget, Office of Financial
Management, Financial Reporting Section at (517) 373-3029.

The State’s component units issue their own separately issued audited financial statements. These statements may be
obtained by directly contacting the component unit. To obtain their phone numbers, you may contact the Office of Financial
Management at (517) 373-3029.
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STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
(In Thousands)

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTALS UNITS
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash $ 15,150 $ 1,338 $ 16,488 $ 303,169
Equity in common cash (Note 5) 2,731,278 75,719 2,806,997 157,108
Taxes, interest, and penalties
receivable (Note 6) 3,918,149 - 3,918,149 -
Internal balances 79,847 (79,847) - -
Amounts due from component units 35,887 294 36,181 5,262
Amounts due from primary government - - - 196,542
Amounts due from federal government 995,705 24,025 1,019,730 20,193
Amounts due from local units 240,108 21,064 261,172 850,290
Inventories 50,647 6,966 57,613 16,959
Investments (Note 8) 451,210 2,467,126 2,918,336 815,911
Securities lending collateral (Note 8) 36,079 198,980 235,059 -
Other current assets 459,928 198,965 658,893 343,038
Total Current Assets 9,013,987 2,914,630 11,928,618 2,708,472
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - - - 290,977
Investments - - - 1,169,951
Mortgages and loans receivable - - - 7,223
Taxes, interest, and penalties
receivable (Note 6) 308,530 - 308,530 -
Amounts due from federal government 3,142 - 3,142 -
Amounts due from local units 628,629 - 628,629 1,849,412
Mortgages and loans receivable - - - 2,788,830
Investments (Note 8) 442,199 673,943 1,116,142 2,002,557
Capital Assets (Note 9):
Land and other non-depreciable assets 3,087,531 - 3,087,531 81,382
Buildings, equipment, and other depreciable assets 4,348,389 3,727 4,352,116 3,362,075
Less accumulated depreciation (1,788,091) (3,284) (1,791,375) (1,327,015)
Infrastructure 11,487,478 - 11,487,478 165,570
Construction in progress 1,214,590 - 1,214,590 284,590
Total capital assets 18,349,897 443 18,350,340 2,566,602
Interest in joint ventures (Note 7) 32,461 - 32,461 -
Other noncurrent assets 29,983 10,016 40,000 253,051
Total Assets $ 28,808,829 $ 3,599,032 $ 32,407,862 $ 13,637,074
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Warrants outstanding $ 114,031 $ 8,438 $ 122,470 $ 665
Obligations under security lending 36,079 198,980 235,059 -
Accounts payable and other liabilities 2,608,566 222,409 2,830,975 331,935
Income tax refunds payable (Note 15) 652,825 - 652,825 -
Amounts due to component units 10,328 - 10,328 4,600
Amounts due to primary government - - - 6,410
Bonds and notes payable (Notes 12 and 13) 478,396 - 478,396 1,207,101
Interest payable 100,416 - 100,416 85,008
Deferred revenue 46,546 74 46,620 68,760
Current portion of other long-term
obligations (Note 14) 296,350 448 296,798 87,822
Total Current Liabilities 4,343,538 430,349 4,773,887 1,792,302
Prize awards payable (Note 14) - 554,546 554,546 -
Deferred revenue 55,327 - 55,327 1,236
Bonds and notes payable (Notes 12 and 13) 5,462,261 - 5,462,261 6,000,767
Noncurrent portion of other long-term
obligations (Note 14) 1,677,747 45,344 1,623,091 1,428,297
Total Liabilities $ 11,438,873 $ 1,030,240 $ 12,469,112 $ 9,222,603

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted For:
Education

Construction and debt service
Public safety and corrections
Conservation, environment,

recreation, and agriculture
Health services
Transportation
Intergovernmental-revenue sharing
Unemployment compensation
Other purposes
Funds Held as Permanent Investments:

Expendable

Nonexpendable

Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTALS UNITS

$ 15,014,812 443 $ 15015255 $ 1,680,918
43,966 - 43,966 151,535
5,937 - 5,937 266,794
19,334 . 19,334 -
393,335 . 393,335 -
23,718 . 23,718 -
608,731 . 608,731 -
189,321 . 189,321 -
- 2,435,856 2,435,856 .
241,835 128,061 369,896 1,335,834
74,683 - 74,683 -
415,710 . 415,710 -
338,575 4,433 343,008 979,391
$ 17,369,957 2,568,793 § 19,938,749 § 4,414,471
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
(In Thousands)

Functions/Programs
Primary Government:

Governmental Activities:
General government
Education
Family independence services
Public safety and corrections
Conservation, environment,

recreation, and agriculture

Labor, commerce, and regulatory
Health services
Transportation
Tax expenditures (Note 15)
Intergovernmental-revenue sharing
Interest on long-term debt

Total governmental activities

Business-type Activities:
Liquor Purchase Revolving Fund
State Lottery Fund
Michigan Unemployment
Compensation Funds

Total business-type activities
Total primary government

Component Units:
Authorities:
Michigan Education Trust
Michigan State Housing Development Authority
Michigan Municipal Bond Authority
Non-Major

State Universities:
Central Michigan University
Western Michigan University
Non-Major
Total component units

PROGRAM REVENUES

OPERATING CAPITAL

CHARGES FOR GRANTS AND GRANTS AND
EXPENSES SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS
1,560,139 $ 664,533 $ 43,891 $ 2,908
14,696,060 10,587 1,053,654 -
3,792,086 54,982 2,584,279 -
2,161,486 113,058 102,536 -
691,796 233,430 111,702 1,146
898,235 256,314 524,009 -
8,952,390 56,822 6,018,687 -
3,268,241 219,129 409,823 585,477
615,100 - - -
1,517,303 - - -
248,263 - . )
38,401,099 1,608,855 10,848,672 589,530
494,696 607,413 - -
1,153,280 1,729,938 82,284 -
2,328,713 1,426,748 453,241 -
3,976,689 3,764,099 535,524 -
42,377,787 $ 5,372,954 $ 11,384,196 $ 589,530
81,279 $ 319 $ 48,898 $ -
352,970 159,307 221,322 -
162,008 101,780 134,261 -
558,052 110,624 297,810 -
262,381 156,721 25,777 1,128
404,673 223,272 27,202 2,441
1,150,011 605,470 129,958 30,055
2,971,375 $ 1,357,493 $ 885,229 $ 33,623

General Revenues:
Taxes:
General:
Sales and use

Personal income
Single business
Other
Restricted For Educational Purposes:
Sales and use
Personal income

Education, property, and real estate transfers

Other
Restricted For Transportation Purposes:
Sales and use
Gasoline and diesel fuel
Motor vehicle weight
Other
Unrestricted investment and interest earnings
Miscellaneous
Contributions to permanent fund principal
Payments from State of Michigan
Special items
Transfers

Total general and other revenue, payments, and transfers

Change in net assets
Net assets-beginning-restated
Net assets-ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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NET (EXPENSE) REVENUES AND
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
GOVERNMENTAL ___ BUSINESS-TYPE COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTALS UNITS

$ (848,807)  $ -8 (848,807) § -
(13,631,819) - (13,631,819) -
(1,152,825) - (1,152,825) -
(1,945,892) - (1,045,892) -
(345,518) - (345,518) -
(117,822) - (117,822) -
(2,876,881) - (2,876,881) -
(2,053,812) - (2,053,812) -
(615,100) - (615,100) -
(1,517,303) - (1,517,303) -
(248,263) - (248,263) -
(25,354,041) - (25,354,041) -
- 112,717 12,717 -

- 658,942 658,942 -

- (448,724) (448,724) -

- 322,935 322,935 -
(25,354,041) 322,935 (25,031,106) -
- - - (32,063)

- - - 27,659

- - - 74,033
- - - (149,618)
- - - (78,755)
) . . (151,759)
- - - (384,528)
- - - (695,030)

2,560,816 - 2,560,816 -
4,549,592 - 4,549,592 -
1,783,582 - 1,783,582 -
1,205,529 10,707 1,216,236 -
5,177,407 - 5,177,407 -
1,761,334 - 1,761,334 -
1,847,603 - 1,847,603 -
694,690 - 694,690 -
77,676 - 77,676 -
1,090,866 - 1,090,866 -
827,347 - 827,347 -
6,727 - 6,727 -
51,657 1,562 53,219 8,051
790,940 8 790,948 47,239
19,928 . 19,928 -

- - - 778,280
- - - (5,000)

894,513 (894,513) - -
23,340,208 (882,235) 22,457,973 828,569
(2,013,834) (559,300) (2,573,138) 133,539
19,383,790 3,128,093 22,511,883 4,280,932

$ 17,369,957 $ 2,568,793 $ 19,938,749 $ 4,414,471
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GOVERNMENTAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Major Funds

GENERAL FUND

This fund is the State’s operating fund. It accounts for the
financial resources and transactions not accounted for in
other funds.

COUNTER - CYCLICAL BUDGET AND ECONOMIC
STABILIZATION FUND

This fund, commonly referred to as the "Budget Stabilization
Fund" or "Rainy Day Fund," was created by P.A. 76 of 1977
to assist in stabilizing revenue and employment during
periods of economic recession and high unemployment. In
general, transfers are made into this fund from the General
Fund during improving economic times and funds flow from
this fund to the General Fund in times of declining economy.
Additional information regarding the fund is provided in Note
3.

SCHOOL AID FUND

An amendment to the 1908 State Constitution created this
fund in 1955. The 1963 State Constitution provided for the
fund’s continued existence. Its purpose is to aid in the
support of the public schools and the intermediate school
districts of the State. School aid payments to school districts
are based on a statutory formula.

The fund receives State revenues restricted to local school
programs, including: the constitutionally dedicated sixty
percent of the collections of sales tax imposed at a rate of 4%
and all of the collections of sales tax imposed at the
additional rate of 2%; State Lottery Fund earings; a
percentage of the adjusted gross receipts from casino
gaming; the real estate transfer tax; and portions of the
personal income, cigarette, liquor, and industrial and
commercial facilities taxes. A constitutional amendment
approved by voters in 1994 made structural changes in the
method of financing local school districts. The amendment
authorized the levy of a statewide property tax, which is
deposited in the School Aid Fund. Appropriated transfers are
also made from the General Fund.

Non-Major Funds

Non-major governmental funds are presented, by fund type,
beginning on page 92.

2001-2002 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
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BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

COUNTER -
CYCLICAL
BUDGET AND TOTALS
ECONOMIC SCHOOL
GENERAL STABILIZATION AID NON-MAJOR  SEPTEMBER 30,
FUND FUND FUND FUNDS 2002
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash $ 7,572 $ - $ - $ 7,413 $ 14,985
Equity in common cash (Note 5) 461,082 145,150 - 1,991,508 2,597,741
Taxes, interest, and penalties
receivable (Note 6) 2,609,974 - 1,179,202 128,973 3,918,149
Amounts due from other funds (Note 17) 782,578 - 23,530 256,671 1,062,779
Amounts due from component units 647 - - 35,240 35,887
Amounts due from federal agencies 789,885 - 1,606 204,214 995,705
Amounts due from local units 105,006 - 60,703 74,400 240,108
Inventories 24,360 - - 8,334 32,695
Investments (Note 8) - - - 451,210 451,210
Securities lending collateral - - - 36,079 36,079
Other current assets 304,474 - 341 42,393 347,209
Total Current Assets 5,085,577 145,150 1,265,382 3,236,436 9,732,546
Taxes, interest, and penalties
receivable (Note 6) 253,915 - 49,972 4,643 308,530
Advances to other funds (Note 17) 6,210 - - 27,734 33,944
Amounts due from federal agencies 3,142 - - - 3,142
Amounts due from local units 583,266 - 652 44,711 628,629
Investments (Note 8) - - - 442,199 442,199
Other noncurrent assets 3,714 - - 7,222 10,936
Total Assets $ 5,935,825 $ 145,150 $ 1,316,007 $ 3,762,944 $ 11,159,927
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Current Liabilities:
Warrants outstanding $ 91,066 $ - $ 11 $ 19,324 $ 110,401
Obligations under security lending - - - 36,079 36,079
Accounts payable and
other liabilities (Note 22) 1,551,426 - 90,887 927,125 2,569,438
Income tax refunds payable (Note 15) 652,825 - - - 652,825
Amounts due to other funds (Note 17) 17,225 - 614,577 368,273 1,000,075
Amounts due to component units 10,228 - - 100 10,328
Interest payable - - - 333 333
Deferred revenue 1,447,008 - 318,625 49,519 1,815,152
Total Current Liabilities 3,769,778 - 1,024,100 1,400,753 6,194,631
Long-Term Liabilities:
Advances from other funds (Note 17) - - - 27,734 27,734
Deferred revenue 388,968 - 49,972 22,496 461,437
Total Liabilities 4,158,746 - 1,074,072 1,450,984 6,683,802
Fund Balances:
Reserved fund balance (Note 21) 1,662,579 - 4,924 1,436,835 3,104,339
Unreserved fund balance reported in:
General fund 114,500 - - - 114,500
Special revenue funds - 145,150 237,010 586,540 968,700
Debt service funds - - - 406,903 406,903
Capital projects funds - - - (158,776) (158,776)
Permanent funds - - - 40,459 40,459
Total Fund Balances 1,777,079 145,150 241,934 2,311,961 4,476,125
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 5,935,825 $ 145,150 $ 1,316,007 $ 3,762,944 $ 11,159,927

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

Total fund balances for governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets

are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources

and therefore are not reported in the funds. (Note 9)

Land and other non-depreciable assets

Buildings, equipment, and other depreciable assets
Infrastructure

Construction in progress

Interest in joint ventures

Accumulated depreciation

reported in the funds.

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period

expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of
certain activities, such as insurance and telecommunications, to
individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds
are included in governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets.

Certain pension trust funds have been funded in excess of the annual
required contributions, creating a year-end asset. This asset is nota
current available resource and is not reported in the funds. (Note 10)

Deferred issue costs are reported as current expenditures in the funds.
However, deferred issue costs are amortized over the life of the bonds
and are included in the governmental activities in the Statement of Net

Assets.

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and

therefore are not reported in the funds. (Note 14)

Capital lease obligations
Compensated absences
Workers' compensation
Litigation

Net pension obligations
Arbitrage

Long-term bonded debt is not due and payable in the current period and
therefore is not reported in the funds. Unamortized premiums, loss on
refundings, and interest payable are not reported in the funds. However,
these amounts are included in the Statement of Net Assets. This is the

net effect of these balances on the statement. (Note 12)

Bonds and notes payable
Unamortized premiums

Less deferred loss amount on refundings
Accrued interest payable

Net assets of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

(1,544,995)

Certain tax revenues are earned but not available and therefore are not

(4,165)

$ 4,476,125

18,241,239

2,071,408

106,742

136,917

2,088

15,947

(1,639,770)

(6,040,740)

$ 17,369,957
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

COUNTER -
CYCLICAL
BUDGET AND TOTALS
ECONOMIC SCHOOL
STABILIZATION AID NON-MAJOR  SEPTEMBER 30,
GENERAL FUND FUND FUNDS 2002
REVENUES
Taxes $ 10,493,581 - 9,520,335 $ 2,056,493 $ 22,070,408
From federal agencies 8,951,725 - 183,019 1,068,973 10,203,716
From local agencies 115,593 - - 133,273 248,867
From services 121,005 - - 844 121,849
From licenses and permits 233,360 - - 175,386 408,746
Special Medicaid reimbursements 1,109,233 - - - 1,109,233
Miscellaneous 504,952 20,794 14,709 677,933 1,218,388
Total Revenues 21,529,450 20,794 9,718,063 4,112,901 35,381,208
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 1,394,497 - - 149,558 1,544,055
Education 3,046,570 - 11,371,034 327,111 14,744,715
Family independence services 3,791,373 - - 2,601 3,793,974
Public safety and corrections 2,131,604 - - 4,903 2,136,506
Conservation, environment,
recreation, and agriculture 366,453 - - 283,900 650,353
Labor, commerce, and regulatory 683,857 - - 207,960 891,817
Health services 8,809,313 - - 82,167 8,891,480
Transportation - - - 2,118,452 2,118,452
Tax expenditures (Note 15) 615,100 - - - 615,100
Capital outlay 60,462 - - 1,405,338 1,465,800
Intergovernmental-revenue sharing 1,517,303 - - - 1,517,303
Debt service:
Bond principal retirement - - - 226,801 226,801
Bond interest and fiscal charges - - - 225,678 225,678
Capital lease payments 50,315 - - 1,072 51,387
Total Expenditures 22,466,848 - 11,371,034 5,035,541 38,873,422
Excess of Revenues over (under)
Expenditures (937,398) 20,794 (1,652,971) (922,639) (3,492,214)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Bonds and notes issued - - 987,850 987,850
Premium on bond issuance - - - 64,238 64,238
Refunding bonds issued - - - 488,145 488,145
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent - - - (527,303) (527,303)
Extinguishment of commercial paper - - - (51,890) (51,890)
Capital lease acquisitions 234,468 - - 2,804 237,272
Transfers from other funds 1,153,096 - 1,193,621 1,786,280 4,132,997
Transfers to other funds (581,611) (869,831) (2,829) (1,744,624) (3,198,895)
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) 805,953 (869,831) 1,190,792 1,005,500 2,132,415
Excess of Revenues and Other
Sources over (under) Expenditures
and Other Uses (131,445) (849,037) (462,179) 82,861 (1,359,800)
Fund Balances - Beginning of
fiscal year 1,908,525 994,187 704,113 2,229,100 5,835,924
Fund Balances - End of fiscal year $ 1,777,079 145,150 241,934 $ 2,311,961 $ 4,476,125

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
(In Thousands)

Net change in fund balance - total governmental funds

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in

the Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their

estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by
which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period.
(Note 9) |

$ (1,359,800)

Land and other non-depreciable assets (6,202)
Buildings, equipment, and other depreciable assets 316,094
Gain on disposal - depreciable assets 5,104
Infrastructure additions 144,666
Infrastructure removed from service (252,078)
Construction in progress 274,251
Accumulated depreciation (133,173) 348,663
Certain revenues that were reported as resources in the funds but were
earned in prior fiscal years are not reported in the Statement of Activities. (62,364)
Increase in equity interest in joint ventures (Note 7) 7,461
Tax revenues that were reported as resources in the funds but were earned
in prior fiscal years are not reported in the Statement of Activities. (474,840)
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of
certain activities, such as insurance and telecommunications, to individual
funds. -The net revenue (expense) of the internal service funds is
reported with governmental activities. 18,632
Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds
by issuing debt which increases long-term bonded debt in the Statement
of Net Assets. Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the
governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term bonded debt
in the Statement of Net Assets. This is the amount proceeds exceed
repayments. (Note 12)
Bond proceeds and premiums received (1,540,233)
Repayment of bond principal 226,801
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent 527,303
Extinguishment of commercial paper 51,890
Accrued interest and amortization (17,904)
Deferred issue costs 7,800 (744,344)
Certain expenditures are reported in the funds. However, they either
increase or decrease long-term liabilities reported on the Statement of
Net Assets and have been eliminated from the Statement of Activities.
(Note 14)
Net pension obligation (112,456)
Capital lease payments 21,713
Compensated absences payments 35,719
Litigation settlements and payments 315,474
Workers' compensation (8,944)
Other 1,251 252,758
Change in net assets of governmental activities $ (2,013,834)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Major Funds

STATE LOTTERY FUND

Public Act 239 of 1972 established the State Lottery Fund and
created a Bureau of State Lottery under authority of Article 5,
Section 4, of the State Constitution. This authority expired on
August 1, 1974, at which time the Bureau became an
organizational entity in the Department of Management and
Budget. The Bureau was transferred to the Department of
Treasury during fiscal year 1990-91. Net income of the fund
related to lottery operations is transferred to the School Aid Fund
and the fund’s net income related to bingo and charity games
regulation is transferred to the General Fund. The remaining net
assets balance represents the unrealized cumulative gain or loss
on investments, as required by GASB Statement No. 31.

Revenues and related expenses are recognized in the period
during which the related drawings are held. Deferred prize
awards are recorded as expenses and liabilities at their
discounted present value. The State Treasurer invests funds
equivalent to the discounted value of the installment payments
and the Lottery Fund is credited with the interest earnings.

MICHIGAN UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION FUNDS

The columns for the Michigan Unemployment Compensation
Funds reflect the activity of two funds administered by the Bureau
of Worker's and Unemployment Compensation within the
Department of Consumer and Industry Services: the Michigan
Unemployment Compensation Fund and the Michigan
Employment Security Act Contingent Fund. The Michigan
Unemployment Compensation Fund receives contributions from
employers and provides for the payment of benefits to eligible
unemployed workers. The fund also makes payments under
certain federally funded programs. Administrative costs of the
fund are accounted for in the Michigan Employment Security Act -
Administration Fund, a special revenue fund.

The Michigan Employment Security Act Contingent Fund was
created by P.A. 535 of 1982 to receive a special temporary
unemployment tax surcharge, known as the solvency tax. The
fund also receives interest and penalty charges on late
contributions. Public Act 224 of 1989 restricts use of solvency
taxes for payment of interest on the Michigan Unemployment
Compensation borrowings from the federal government.

Non-Major Funds

LIQUOR PURCHASE REVOLVING FUND

Public Act 259 of 1941 authorized the creation of the Liquor
Purchase Revolving Fund. The Liquor Control Commission,
within the Department of Consumer and Industry Services, is
primarily responsible for the fund. Under State monopoly, liquor is
sold at wholesale through a State controlled, privately operated
distribution system. The fund accounts for the sales of and the
replenishing and transporting of the liquor stock. Administrative,
warehousing, and delivery costs are paid for through the fund. At
the end of each fiscal year, the "net income" of the fund is
transferred to the General Fund in accordance with P.A. 431 of
1984.

Individual fund statements for the Internal Service Funds, whose
combined totals are presented on this statement, begin on page
156.

2001-2002 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
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PTEMBER 30, 2002
Thousands)

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash
Equity in common cash (Note 5)
Amounts due from other funds (Note 17)
Amounts due from component units
Amounts due from federal agencies
Amounts due from local units
Inventories
Investments (Note 8)
Securities lending collateral
Other current assets

Total Current Assets
Investments (Note 8)

Capital Assets (Note 9):
Buildings and equipment
Allowance for depreciation

Total capital assets
Other noncurrent assets

Total Assets
LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Warrants outstanding
Accounts payable and
other liabilities (Note 22)
Amounts due to other funds (Note 17)
Deferred revenue

Obligations under security lending (Note 8)

Current portion of other
long-term obligations (Note 14)

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities:
Advances from other funds (Note 17)
Prize awards payable
Noncurrent portion of other
long-term obligations (Note 14)

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES -- ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $

Restricted For:
Unemployment compensation
Other purposes

Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

MAJOR NON-MAJOR
GOVERNMENTAL

MICHIGAN LIQUOR TOTALS ACTIVITIES --

STATE UNEMPLOYMENT PURCHASE INTERNAL

LOTTERY COMPENSATION  REVOLVING SEPTEMBER 30, SERVICE

FUND FUNDS FUND 2002 FUNDS

$ 2 $ 1,336 $ 1 $ 1,338 $ 165
6,484 17,672 51,563 75,719 133,537

- 8,182 - 8,182 49,653

- 294 - 294 -

- 24,025 - 24,025 -

- 21,064 - 21,064 -

3,572 - 3,394 6,966 17,953
109,384 2,357,742 - 2,467,126 -
198,980 - - 198,980 -
54,835 138,804 5,326 198,965 112,309
373,257 2,569,120 60,283 3,002,659 313,617
673,943 - - 673,943 -
3,727 - - 3,727 384,214
(3,284) - - (3,284) (243,096)

443 - - 443 141,119

- 10,016 - 10,016 955

$ 1,047,643 $ 2,579,136 $ 60,283 $ 3,687,061 $ 455,692
$ 1,685 $ - $ 6,753 $ 8,438 $ 3,630
139,120 35,193 48,096 222,409 23,242
23,581 64,393 54 88,029 48,123

- 74 - 74 3,242

198,980 - - 198,980 -

123 - 325 448 119,641

363,489 99,660 55,229 518,378 197,878

- - - - 6,210

554,546 - - 554,546 -
1,546 43,619 178 45,344 114,686
919,582 143,280 55,407 1,118,269 318,774

443 $ - $ - $ 443 $ 107,825

- 2,435,856 - 2,435,856 -

128,061 - - 128,061 8,899

(443) - 4,876 4,433 20,193

$ 128,061 $ 2,435,856 $ 4,876 $ 2,568,793 $ 136,917



Michigan

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES -- ENTERPRISE FUNDS

MAJOR NON-MAJOR
GOVERNMENTAL
MICHIGAN LIQUOR TOTALS ACTIVITIES --
STATE UNEMPLOYMENT PURCHASE INTERNAL
LOTTERY COMPENSATION REVOLVING SEPTEMBER 30, SERVICE
FUND FUNDS FUND 2002 FUNDS
OPERATING REVENUES
Operating revenues $ 1,729,938 $ 1,426,748 $ 607,413 $ 3,764,099 $ 1,567,464
Total Operating Revenues 1,729,938 1,426,748 607,413 3,764,099 1,567,464
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries, wages, and other administrative 204,686 - 49,066 253,752 650,263
Depreciation 158 - - 158 44,682
Purchases for resale - - 443,885 443,885 41,094
Purchases for prison industries - - - - 16,690
Lottery prize awards 894,955 - - 894,955 -
Premiums and claims - - 1 1 761,479
Unemployment benefits - 1,926,001 - 1,926,001 -
Other operating expenses - 402,712 1,743 404,455 64,731
Total Operating Expenses 1,099,798 2,328,713 494,696 3,923,206 1,578,940
Operating Income (Loss) 630,140 (901,965) 112,717 (159,107) (11,477)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Specific tax on spirits - - 10,707 10,707 -
Interest revenue 1,621 - 1,562 3,182 -
Investment revenue (expense) - net 80,663 167,417 - 238,080 -
Other nonoperating revenues - 295,823 - 295,823 9,268
Amortization of prize award
obligation discount (48,726) - - (48,726) -
Interest expense (4,756) - - (4,756) (1,657)
Other nonoperating expense - - 8 8 (393)
Total Nonoperating
Revenues (Expenses) 28,802 453,241 12,278 494,320 7,218
Income (Loss) Before Capital .
Contributions and Transfers 658,942 (448,724) 124,995 335,212 (4,259)
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS
Capital contributions from other funds - - - - 23,561
Transfers from other funds - 3,674 - 3,674 -
Transfers To:
School Aid Fund (613,530) - - (613,530) -
Other funds (13,056) (144,806) (126,795) (284,657) (670)
Total transfers to other funds (626,586) (144,806) (126,795) (898,187) (670)
Total Capital Contributions
and Transfers In (Out) (626,586) (141,132) (126,795) (894,513) 22,891
Change in net assets 32,355 (589,856) (1,800) (559,300) 18,632
Total net assets - Beginning
of fiscal year 95,706 3,025,712 6,676 3,128,093 118,286
Total net assets - End of fiscal year $ 128,061 $ 2,435,856 $ 4,876 $ 2,568,793 $ 136,917

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.




Michigan

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from federal and local agencies
Receipts from customers
Payments to employees
Payments to suppliers
Payments to prize winners
Payments for commissions to retailers
Claims paid
Other receipts
Other payments

Net cash provided (used)

by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Other nonoperating revenues
Loans or loan repayments from other funds
Loans or loan repayments to other funds
Specific tax on spirits
Transfers to other funds

Net cash provided (used)

by noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Interest paid
Capital lease payments
(including imputed interest expense)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Net cash provided (used) by capital
and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of investment securities
Proceeds from sale and maturities
of investment securities
Interest and dividends on investments
Income from securities lending activities
Expenses from securities lending activities
Net cash provided (used)
by investing activities

Net cash provided (used) - all activities
Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents
at end of year

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES -- ENTERPRISE FUNDS

MAJOR NON-MAJOR
GOVERNMENTAL
MICHIGAN LIQUOR TOTALS ACTIVITIES -
STATE UNEMPLOYMENT PURCHASE INTERNAL
LOTTERY COMPENSATION REVOLVING SEPTEMBER 30, SERVICE
FUND FUNDS FUND 2002 FUNDS

- $ 379,009 - $ 379,009 $ N
1,704,354 1,017,074 607,413 3,328,841 1,109,099
(12,803) - (14,209) (27,012) (51,106)
(39,578) - (484,879) (524,457) (445,028)
(1,002,860) - - (1,002,860) -
(150,203) - - (150,203) -
- (2,313,706) - (2,313,706) (568,860)
- 1,641 8 1,649 489
- - (1,249) (1,249) (16,631)
498,910 $ (915,982) $ 107,084 $ (309,989) $ 27,963
- $ 295,823 - $ 295,823 $ -
- - - - 24,084
. N . - (25,005)
- - 10,707 10,707 -
(612,066) (83,360) (126,795) (822,220) (670)
(612,066) $ 212,463 $  (116,087) $ (515,690) $ (1,592)
(313) $ - - $ (313) $ (28,702)
- - - - (299)
B . - - (15,857)
) . - - 8,462
(313) $ - $ - $ (313) $ (36,396)
(40,879) $ - - $ (40,879) $ -
150,729 476,806 - 627,535 -
1,621 157,417 1,562 160,599 9,224
5,653 - - 5,653 -
(4,756) - - (4,756) -
112,367 $ 634,223 $ 1,562 $ 748,152 $ 9,224
(1,102) $ (69,296) (7,442) $ (77,839) $ (801)
5,902 88,304 52,252 146,458 130,873
4,801 $ 19,008 44,810 $ 68,619 $ 130,072

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Michigan

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES -- ENTERPRISE FUNDS

MAJOR NON-MAJOR
GOVERNMENTAL
MICHIGAN LIQUOR TOTALS ACTIVITIES --
STATE UNEMPLOYMENT PURCHASE INTERNAL
LOTTERY COMPENSATION REVOLVING SEPTEMBER 30, SERVICE
FUND FUNDS FUND 2002 FUNDS
RECONCILIATION OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Per Balance Sheet Classifications:
Cash $ 2 $ 1,336 $ 1 $ 1,338 $ 165
Equity in common cash 6,484 17,672 51,563 75,719 133,537
Warrants outstanding (1,685) - (6,753) (8,438) (3,630)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 4,801 $ 19,008 $ 44,810 $ 68,619 $ 130,072

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME
(LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED
(USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss) $ 630,140 $
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income
to Net Cash Provided (Used)
by Operating Activities:

(901,965) $ 112,717 $ (159,107) 3 (11,477)

Depreciation expense 158 - - 158 44,682
Amortization of prize award :
obligation discount (48,726) - - (48,726) -
Other reconciling items 171 - - 17 (9,272)
Net Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Inventories (1,441) - (102) (1,543) 1,690
Other assets (net) (4,470) (33,504) 503 (37,471) 11,305
Accounts payable and other liabilities 3,510 19,635 (6,034) 17,110 (8,966)
Prize awards payable (80,432) - - (80,432) -
Deferred revenue - (148) - (148) -
Net cash provided (used)
by operating activities $ 498,910 $ (915,982) $ 107,084 $ (309,989) $ 27,963
SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING,
CAPITAL, AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cost of capital assets acquisitions
financed by capital leases $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 18,989
Capital lease liabilities entered
into during the year - - - - (18,989)
Increase (decrease) in fair value
of investments 24,496 - - 24,496 -
Transfers from other funds - 3,674 - 3,674 -
Transfers to other funds (accrual) (23,530) (61,446) - (84,976) -
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets - - - - (365)
Total noncash investing, capital,
and financing activities $ 966 $ (57,772) $ - $ (56,806) $ 365
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Individual fund descriptions and financial statements begin on the
following pages:
Pension (and Other Employee Benefit) Trust Funds, page 164
Private Purpose Trust Funds, page 170
Agency Funds, page 175

2001-2002 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
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Michigan

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

PENSION
(AND OTHER
EMPLOYEE PRIVATE
BENEFIT) PURPOSE
TRUST TRUST AGENCY
FUNDS FUNDS FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash $ 1,151 $ 635 32,885
Equity in common cash (Note 5) 134,626 53,561 5,720
Receivables:
From participants 100,003 - -
From employers 451,064 - -
Interest and dividends 151,543 466 -
Due from other funds (Note 17) 15,936 - -
Sale of investments 7,740 - -
Investments at Fair Value (Note 8):
Short term investments 894,022 - 18,894
Bonds, notes, mortgages, and preferred stock 9,351,662 13,950 83,782
Common stock 16,519,070 73 -
Real estate 3,927,982 - -
Alternative investments 5,652,439 - -
International investments 2,968,501 - -
Mutual funds 1,237,743 172,417 -
Pooled investment funds 1,590,263 33,971 -
Money market funds 228,367 - -
Securities lending collateral (Note 8) 1,744,533 - -
Capital Assets:
Buildings and equipment 24 - -
Allowance for depreciation (24) - -
Total capital assets - - -
Other current assets - 4,175 7,950
Other noncurrent assets - - 357,954
Total assets $ 44,976,645 $ 279,247 507,186
LIABILITIES
Warrants outstanding $ 11,906 $ 1,929 119
Accounts payable and other liabilities 174,300 5,129 65,514
Amounts due to other funds (Note 17) 51 - 273
Obligations under security lending 1,744,533 - -
Other long-term liabilities - - 441,280
Total liabilities $ 1,930,791 $ 7,058 507,186
NET ASSETS
Net assets held in trust for pension,
postemployment health-care, other employee
benefits, and other purposes $ 43,045,854 $ 272,189
Reconciliation of Net Assets Held in Trust:
Pension benefits (Note 10) $ 39,874,694 $ -
Postemployment health-care benefits 421,414 -
Other employee benefits (Note 16) 2,749,746 -
Other purposes - 272,189
Total net assets held in trust for benefits
and other purposes $ 43,045,854 3$ 272,189

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Michigan

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

ADDITIONS
Contributions:
From participants
From employers
From clients
From gifts, bequests, and endowments
From other plans

Investment Income:
Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair value of investments
Interest, dividends, and other
Securities lending income
Less Investment Expense:
Investment activity expense
Securities lending expense
Net investment income (loss)
Escheated property
Miscellaneous income
Transfers from other funds

Total Additions

DEDUCTIONS
Benefits paid to participants or beneficiaries
Medical, dental, and life insurance for retirants
Refunds and transfers to other systems
Amounts distributed to clients or third parties
Administrative expense
Transfers to other funds

Total Deductions
Net increase (decrease)
Net assets - Beginning of fiscal year
Net assets - End of fiscal year (Note 10)
Reconciliation of Net Increase in Assets:
Net increase (decrease) in assets held in trust for pension benefits
Net increase (decrease) in assets held in trust for postemployment benefits
Net increase (decrease) in assets held in trust for other employee benefits

Net increase (decrease) in assets held in trust for other purposes

Total net increase (decrease)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

PENSION
(AND OTHER
EMPLOYEE PRIVATE
BENEFIT) PURPOSE
TRUST TRUST
FUNDS FUNDS
$ 838,473 177,636
1,648,189 -
- 38,090
- 291
3,047 -
(6,112,343) (26,417)
1,148,498 5,229
45,413 5
84,620 571
36,390 4
(5,039,443) (21,758)
- 43,618
2,097 601
- 316
(2,547,637) 238,794
3,014,171 4,386
821,835 .
21,022 -
- 39,221
83,408 39
97 39,138
3,940,533 82,783
(6,488,170) 156,011
49,534,024 116,178
$ 43,045,854 272,189
$ (6,331,854) -
182,699 -
(339,015) .
- 156,011
$ (6,488,170) 156,011
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Major Funds

MICHIGAN EDUCATION TRUST

The Michigan Education Trust (MET) operates a prepaid tuition
program. A purchaser enters into a contract with MET which
provides that in return for a specified actuarially determined
payment, MET will provide a Michigan child's undergraduate
tuition at any Michigan public university or community college.
The amount the purchaser is required to pay is based on several
factors, among them are tuition costs, the child's age and grade
in school, anticipated investment earnings, tuition rate increases,
and the type of contract purchased.

Public Act 316 of 1986 created MET. MET is governed by a
nine-member board that consists of the State Treasurer and eight
other individuals appointed by the Governor with the advice and
consent of the Senate. Although MET is administratively located
within the Michigan Department of Treasury, the Act provides its
assets are not to be considered assets of the State and are not to
be loaned or otherwise transferred or used by the State for any
purpose other than the purposes specified in the Act. The Act
and contracts also specifically provide that the State is not liable if
MET becomes actuarially unsound. In that event, the contracts
provide for refunds to participants.

MICHIGAN STATE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

Public Act 346 of 1966, as amended, created the Michigan State
Housing Development Authority (MSHDA) to issue notes and
bonds to finance housing for sale or rental to families with low or
moderate incomes and to finance home improvements. MSHDA
is also the administrator of various "Section 8" housing programs
in Michigan for the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development. The Governor appoints MSHDA'’s board members.

MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL BOND AUTHORITY

Public Act 227 of 1985, as amended, created the Michigan
Municipal Bond Authority (MMBA) to assist local units of
government in reducing their financing costs for public
improvements, deficit reduction, and various other municipal
purposes. MMBA pools the borrowing needs of various units and
issues limited obligation debt; the proceeds of which are used to
purchase local unit obligations or to make loans to local units.

MMBA is governed by a board of trustees consisting of the State
Treasurer, two appointees of the Governor, and five state
residents appointed by the Governor, with the advice and consent
of the Senate.

MMBA and the Department of Environmental Quality serve as co-
administrators of a special State Revolving Fund, which is
reported as part of MMBA. The State Revolving Fund assists
governmental units in financing water quality projects. Federal
government and State matching provides financing for this
activity along with investment interest earnings and/or other
available funds. MMBA's separately issued financial reports
provide a separate accounting of this fund’s activities.

CENTRAL MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY AND WESTERN
MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY

Central Michigan University and Western Michigan University are
the two major universities of the ten universities included in this
report. They are legally separate entities whose governing
boards are appointed by the Governor and for which the State is
therefore, defined as legally accountable. Excluded from this
report are three other universities (University of Michigan,
Michigan State University and Wayne State University) whose
board members are elected by the voters and, therefore,
considered separate special purpose governments.

Non-Major Funds

The non-major component unit - authorities are presented
beginning on page 180.

The non-major component unit - State universities are presented
beginning on page 186.

2001-2002 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
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Michigan

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

COMPONENT UNITS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash

Equity in common cash (Note 5)
Amounts due from component units
Amounts due from primary government
Amounts due from federal government
Amounts due from local units

Inventories

Investments (Note 8)
Other current assets

Total Current Assets

Restricted Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Mortgages and loans receivable
Amounts due from local units
Mortgages and loans receivable
Investments (Note 8)

Capital Assets:

Land and other non-depreciable assets

Buildings, equipment, and other depreciable assets -

Less accumulated depreciation

Infrastructure

Construction in progress

Total capital assets
Other noncurrent assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Warrants outstanding
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Amounts due to component units
Amounts due to primary government
Bonds and notes payable (Note 13)
Interest payable
Deferred revenue
Current portion of other long-term obligations

Total Current Liabilities

Deferred revenue
Bonds and notes payable (Note 13)
Noncurrent portion of other long-term obligations

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted For:
Education

Construction and debt service
Other purposes

Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

AUTHORITIES
MICHIGAN
STATE MICHIGAN
MICHIGAN HOUSING MUNICIPAL
EDUCATION  DEVELOPMENT BOND

TRUST AUTHORITY AUTHORITY NON-MAJOR
$ 76094 § - $ - $ 43,724
- - 11,378 145,729
. . - 4,600
969 - 566 8,775
. . . 7,752
- - 850,183 -
- . - 621
- - 633,656 66,496
22,024 70,028 37,962 137,686
99,087 70,028 1,533,745 415,383
. 151,586 - 77,202
- 614,240 - 555,710
- . 1,849,412 -
- 1,864,712 - 857,627
798,504 - 808,691 71,852
) i - 843
- - 46,237
) - . (14,347)
- - - 101,349
- - - 20
- - - 134,102
35,644 48,833 135,679 14,454
$ 933,325  $ 2,749,399 $ 4,327,526  $ 2,126,420
$ - $ - $ - $ 665
14,893 24,957 16,810 43,706
- - - 4,600
- - 823 1,006
- 180,735 823,334 177,355
- 14,543 47,140 7,237
- - 13,605 2,827
65,503 - - 8,319
80,397 220,235 901,714 245,715
- 1,648,104 2,133,227 1,281,876
782,221 445,734 80,580 53,534
$ 862618  $ 2,314,073 $ 3,115,520 $ 1,581,125
$ -8 - $ - $ 126,071
- 201,747 - 13,979
70,707 - 1,204,482 21,548
- 233,579 7,524 383,697
§ 70,707 ~ § 435326 $ 1,212,006 § 545295



Michigan

STATE UNIVERSITIES
TOTALS
CENTRAL WESTERN
MICHIGAN MICHIGAN SEPTEMBER 30,
UNIVERSITY UNIVERSITY NON-MAJOR 2002

$ 15,174 $ 11,738 $ 156,440 $ 303,169

- - - 157,108
- - 662 5,262
46,005 24,780 115,446 196,542
234 2,522 9,684 20,193
- - 106 850,290
2,710 5,719 7,910 16,959
- 63,261 52,499 815,911
15,004 8,514 51,821 343,038
79,128 116,534 394,566 2,708,472
36,586 - 25,513 290,977
- - - 1,169,951
7,223 - - 7,223
- - - 1,849,412
- 8,268 58,223 2,788,830
105,066 25,520 192,835 2,002,557
9,337 13,617 57,585 81,382
400,802 676,377 2,238,660 3,362,075
(182,605) (275,065) (854,998) (1,327,015)
7,140 - 57,080 165,570
27,597 102,722 154,251 284,590
262,271 517,652 1,652,577 2,566,602
- 4,788 13,654 253,051

$ 490,273 $ 672,761 $ 2,337,368 $ 13,637,074

$ . $ . $ . $ 665
43,575 70,014 117,979 331,935
- - - 4,600

225 24 4,331 6,410
3,550 5,321 16,806 1,207,101
1,398 11,216 3,474 85,008
8,046 10,259 34,023 68,760

- - 13,999 87,822
56,795 96,834 190,612 1,792,302
- - 1,236 1,236
132,487 247,016 558,057 6,000,767
15,140 13,734 37,354 1,428,297

$ 204,422 $ 357,584 $ 787,259 $ 9,222,603

$ 162,685 $ 245791 $ 1,146,372 $ 1,680,918

28,501 10,222 112,812 151,535
6,106 5,582 39,379 266,794
- 8,955 30,141 1,335,834
88,560 44,627 221,405 979,391

$ 285,851 $ 315,177 $ 1,550,109 $ 4,414,471
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PROGRAM REVENUES
OPERATING CAPITAL NET
CHARGES FOR GRANTS/ GRANTS/ (EXPENSE)
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS EXPENSES SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS REVENUE
Authorities:
Michigan Education Trust $ 81,279 $ 319 $ 48,898 $ - $ (32,063)
Michigan State Housing
Development Authority 352,970 159,307 221,322 - 27,659
Michigan Municipal Bond Authority 162,008 101,780 134,261 - 74,033
Non-Major 558,052 110,624 297,810 - (149,618)
State Universities:
Central Michigan University 262,381 156,721 25,777 1,128 (78,755)
Western Michigan University 404,673 223,272 27,202 2,441 (151,759)
Non-Major 1,150,011 605,470 129,958 30,055 (384,528)
Total $ 2,971,375 $ 1,857,493 $ 885,229 $ 33,623 $  (695,030)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.




Michigan

GENERAL REVENUES
INTEREST AND PAYMENTS NET ASSETS
INVESTMENT FROM BEGINNING NET ASSETS
EARNINGS STATE OF SPECIAL CHANGE IN OF YEAR END
(LOSS) MICHIGAN OTHER ITEMS NET ASSETS RESTATED OF YEAR

$ - $ - $ - $ - $  (32,083) $ 102,770 3 70,707

- - - - 27,659 407,667 435,326

- - - (4,629) 69,404 1,142,602 1,212,006

694 105,003 16,301 (371) (27,991) 573,286 545,295

(381) 102,596 110 - 23,570 262,281 285,851

4,068 127,167 18,711 - (1,813) 316,990 315,177

3,670 443,514 12,118 - 74,774 1,475,335 1,550,109

$ 8,051 $ 778,280 $ 47,239 $ (5,000) $ 133,539 $ 4,280,932 $ 4,414,471



